1. IDENTITY OF PETITIONER

JEREMIAH JAMES GILBERT requests the relief designated in

Part 2 of this Petition.

2. STATEMENT OF RELIEF SOUGHT

Mr. Gilbert seeks review of an Unpublished Opinion of Division III

of the Court of Appeals dated April 3, 2018. (Appendix "A" 1-87)

3. ISSUES PRESENTED FOR REVIEW

1. Does the majority decision comport with the spirit of the law as

dictated by Roper V. Simmons, 543 U.S. 551,125 S. Ct. 1183,161 L. Ed. 2d

1 (2005); Graham v. Florida, 560 U.S. 48, 130 S. Ct. 2011, 176 L. Ed. 825

(2010); Miller v. Alabama, 567 U.S. _ 132 S. Ct. 2455,183 L. Ed. 2d 407

(2012); Montgomery v. Louisiana, 577 U.S. 136 S. Ct. 718, 193 L. Ed.

2d 599 (2016); and Tatum v. Arizona, 580 U.S. _ 137 U.S. S. Ct. 11, _L.

Ed. 2d _ (2016)?

2. Does the majority's reliance upon RCW 9.94A.740(1) and WAC

381-40-150 contravene Mr. Gilbert's right to equal protection under the

Fourteenth Amendment to the United States Constitution, Const, art. I, § 3,

as well as the Eighth Amendment to the United States Constitution involv

ing cruel and unusual punishment?



3. Does the majority opinion that Mr. Gilbert has a means of al

ternative relief under State v. Houston-Sconiers, 188 Wn.2d 1 (2017) side

step its duty to consider that case which was filed as an additional statement

of authorities on March 8, 2017?

4. Does the sentencing court's imposition of consecutive sen

tences amount to a de facto life sentence in violation of the constitutional

mandates of Roper v. Simmons, supra-, Graham v. Florida, supra; Miller v.

Alabama, supra-, and Montgomery v, Louisiana, supra.

4. STATEMENT OF THE CASE

A jury found Mr. Gilbert guilty of six (6) offenses on April 16,1993.

The offenses were:

• Aggravated first degree murder;

•  First degree murder;

•  Second degree assault;

•  First degree burglary;

•  First degree theft; and

•  First degree robbery.

The crimes occurred on September 20, 1992. Mr. Gilbert was fif

teen (15) years-old at that time.

All of the foregoing information is contained in the Judgment and

Sentence entered on June 7,1993. The trial court imposed a sentence of life

in prison without possibility of parole on aggravated first-degree murder. A



sentence of two hundred and eighty (280) months, to run consecutive to the

sentence for aggravated first-degree murder, was imposed on first degree

murder. The sentences on the other four (4) offenses were to run concurrent

with one another and concurrent with the aggravated murder offense. (CP

0)

Mr. Gilbert's case was remanded to Klickitat County Superior Court

for resentencing based upon Miller v. Alabama, supra.

The Court appointed an expert witness to evaluate Mr. Gilbert in

accord with the requirements of the Miller case. (CP 25)

Ronald Roesch, PhD, a clinical psychologist and professor of psy

chology, conducted the evaluation. His risk assessment was filed on Sep

tember 17, 2015. (CP 38)

All of the psychological testing conducted by Dr. Roesch indicated

that Mr. Gilbert produced a valid personality profile. (CP 43)

The Personality Assessment Inventory (PAI) did not indicate the

presence of any clinical psychopathology. (CP 43)

The HCR-20 (an assessment of risk for violence and recidivism)

analysis established that Mr. Gilbert has a "low risk to reoffend." (CP 45)

Dr. Roesch also relied upon a report from the Washington State In

stitute for Public Policy which analyzed follow-up data on violent juvenile

offenders. The report found that



... through age 25, only 20% of these violent
young offenders were subsequently sen-
teneed for a violent felony as an adult. Thus,
the majority of violent youth do not repre
sent a substantial long-term risk of vio
lence. The reasons for this are complex, but
from a developmental perspective, it is likely
due to the fact that adolescents, compared to
adults, are more likely to respond impul
sively, take greater risks, think less about
long-term consequences of their behavior,
and are more likely to be influenced by
their peers.

(CP 45) (Emphasis supplied.)

Dr. Roesch went on to cite a study by the Washington Coalition for

the Just Treatment of Youth (2009) which concluded

"... recent breakthroughs in brain develop
ment research have shown that due to ana

tomical differences in the adolescent brain,

youth are less able than adults to assess
risks, control impulsive behavior, and en
gage in moral reasoning."

(CP 46) (Emphasis supplied.)

After his arrest Mr. Gilbert was evaluated in accord with the Kent'

criteria. That evaluation stated:

The murders were not planned but rather
appeared to be an impulsive reaction to be
ing confronted during the attempted truck
theft. The probation report presented at his
decline hearing noted that he did not meet the
Kent criteria for sophistication and maturity
and his ability to process information and
his decision-making capacity was not the
same as an adult's capacity. This perspec
tive was echoed in the testimony of the

' Kent V. United States, 383 U.S. 541, Sup. Ct. , L. Ed. (1966).
4



Klickitat County Juvenile Court Administra
tor who commented that he was not particu
larly sophisticated or mature beyond his age.
His alcohol use was a factor as it appeared to
be associated with declines in his school per
formance and increasing difficulties in his
family life.

(CP 47) (Emphasis supplied.)

Defense counsel argued that the indeterminate aggravated first-de

gree murder sentence precluded consecutive sentences with the remaining

offenses and that all of those offenses should run concurrent with the aggra

vated first-degree murder sentence. (RP 12,11. 1-9)

The Court of Appeals issued its unpunished opinion on April 3,

2018. The majority decision relies upon RCW 9.94A.730 (1) and WAC

381-40-150. The majority affirmed the resentencing court's imposition of

consecutive sentences.

On the other hand, the dissent comprehensively analyses the State

of the law nationwide and concludes that the resentencing court committed

error by adopting the State's position that consecutive sentences were ap

propriate under the facts and circumstances.

In the absence of Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law there is

no certainty as to whether or not the resentencing Court conducted the re

quired individualized examination of whether or not Mr. Gilbert is either

"incorrigible" or "irreparably corrupted."



ARGUMENT WHY REVIEW SHOULD BE ACCEPTED

Jeremiah James Gilbert is neither "incorrigible" or "irreparably cor

rupted."

A sentencing court's reasons for imposing a sentence are reviewed

as a matter of law. See: State v. Hammond, 121 Wn.2d 787, 794, 854 P.2d

637 (1993).

The law continues to advance and realize that juvenile offenders dif

fer from adult offenders. When Mr. Gilbert was resentenced, the sentencing

court did not comply with what is required at a Miller bearing. In State v.

Ramos, 187 Wn.2d 420, 387 P.3d 650 (2017), the Court stated at 444:

When making its decision, the court must be
mindful that a life-witbout-parole sentence is
constitutionally prohibited for juvenile hom
icide offenders whose crimes reflect '"unfor

tunate yet transient immaturity'" rather than
"'irreparable corruption.'" [Miller at 2469].
Moreover, due to "children's diminished cul
pability and heightened capacity for change
... appropriate occasions for sentencing juve
niles to this harshest possible penalty will be
uncommon." Id. The sentencing court
must thoroughly explain its reasoning,
speciflcally considering the differences be
tween juveniles and adults identified by
the Miller Court and how those differences

apply to the case presented. While formal
written Bndings of fact and conclusions of
law are not strictly required, they are al
ways preferable to ensure that the relevant
considerations have been made and to fa

cilitate appellate review.

(Emphasis supplied.)



The record is replete with evidence that Mr. Gilbert's crimes are the

result of transient immaturity, not because he is either "incorrigible" or "ir

reparably corrupted." He met the burden of proof required by Miller.

The sentencing court did not provide any individualized reasoning

for its decision. Rather, it specifically stated that it was adopting the State's

position in toto.

Mr. Gilbert asserts that, as a matter of law, the trial court committed

error when it confined itself to the complete adoption of the State's argu

ment. As the Miller Court noted in citing to Graham v. Florida, supra, 560

U.S. ("A State is not required to guarantee eventual freedom," but must

provide "some meaningful opportunity to obtain release based on demon

strated maturity and rehabilitation"). (Emphasis supplied.)

Mr. Gilbert contends that he presented the necessary information to

the sentencing court that would enable it to conclude that he was eligible

for a mitigated sentence. As the Ramos Court noted at 436:

Miller establishes a substantive rule that a

life-without-parole sentence cannot be im
posed on a juvenile homicide offender whose
crimes reflect transient immaturity. There
fore, where a juvenile offender facing a
standard range life-without-parole sen
tence proves that his or her crimes reflect
transient immaturity, the juvenile has nec
essarily proved that there are substantial
and compelling reasons for an exceptional
sentence downward. Miller anticipates that
most juveniles will be able to meet this bur
den of proof, and we now explicitly hold that
all juvenile homicide offenders must be given
the opportunity to do so at a Miller hearing.

7



(Emphasis supplied.)

Mr. Gilbert agrees that he was given the opportunity to present evi

dence to support an exceptional sentence downward. However, the sentenc

ing court failed to appropriately apply those factors.

The majority's reliance on RCW 9.94A.730 and WAC 381-40-150

is misplaced.

RCW 9.94A.730 (1) states:

Notwithstanding any other provision of
this chapter, any person convicted of one
or more crimes committed prior to the
person's eighteenth birthday may petition
the indeterminate sentence review board

[ISRB] for early release after serving no less
than twenty years of total confinement, pro
vided the person has not been convicted for
any erime committed subsequent to the per
son's eighteenth birthday, the person has not
eommitted a disqualifying serious infraetion
as defined by the department in the twelve
months prior to filing the petition for early re
lease, and the current sentence was not im
posed under RCW 10.95.030 or 9.94A.507.

(Emphasis supplied.)

It is obvious that the statute is inapplicable to Mr. Gilbert's situation.

He was sentenced under RCW 10.95.030. Moreover, the mandatory mini

mum 20-year sentence set out in the statute, when viewed in light of the

required mandatory minimum sentenee of 25 years for aggravated murder,

is what results in a de facto life sentence.

8



Mr. Gilbert has already served more than the 25-year mandatory

minimum sentence on the aggravated murder conviction. He now must

complete another mandatory minimum 20-year sentence before the ISRB

can even consider parole. As WAC 381-40-150 states:

Upon submission of a certification of good
time credits by an institution superintendent,
the board may parole to the consecutive cause
so that the good time release date of the first
cause becomes the time start of the second

cause.

It is at this juncture that Mr. Gilbert is denied equal protection of the

law as well as having his rights violated under the Roper, Graham, Miller,

and Montgomery decisions.

Mr. Gilbert asserts that equal protection is violated as a result of the

limited application of RCW 9.94A.540(3) which provides:

(a) Subsection (l)(a) through (d) of this sec
tion, shall not be applied in sentencing of
juveniles tried as adults pursuant to RCW
13.04.030(l)(e)(i).

(b) This subsection (3) applies only to
crimes committed on or after July 24,

2005.

(Emphasis supplied.)

As a result of this limitation, Mr. Gilbert is subject to RCW

9.94A.540(1) which states, in part:

Except to the extent provided in subsection
(3) of this section, the following minimum
terms of total confinement are mandatory and
shall not be varied or modified under RCW

9.94A.535:

9



(  )

(a) An offender convicted of the crime of
murder in the first degree shall be sen
tenced to a term of total confinement not

less than twenty years. ...

The question thus becomes whether or not the limitation contained

in the statute runs contrary to the ruling in Personal Restraint of Mulhol-

land, 161 Wn.2d 322, 166 P.3d 677 (2007). It appears to do so in that the

language is mandatory and requires consecutive sentencing of mandatory

minimum terms which amounts to a de facto life sentence. Thus, the ade

quacy of Mr. Gilbert's resentencing hearing is highly questionable.

In State v. Solis-Diaz, 187 Wn.2d 535, 387 P.3d 703 (2016), the

Court delineated that a resentencing court must take into account that juve

niles have a reduced sense of responsibility, increased impetuousness, in

creased susceptibility to outside pressures (including peer pressure) and a

greater claim to forgiveness in time for amendment of life. This must be an

individualized determination which was not done by the resentencing court.

State V. Ronquillo, 190 Wn. App. 765, 361 P.3d 779 (2015) cites an

Iowa Supreme Court decision and adopts its reasoning:

In a persuasive opinion by the Iowa Supreme
Court, the issue was whether a 52.5-year ag
gregate prison term imposed upon a juvenile
for second degree murder and first degree
robbery triggered M///er-type protections.
State V. Null, 836 N.W.2d 41, 71-75 (Iowa)
(2013). The court did not regard the juve
nile's "potential future release in his or her
late sixties after a half century of incarcera
tion" sufficient to escape the rationales of
Graham or Miller. Null, 836 N.W.2d at 71.

10



The court concluded that Miller's princi
ples are fully applicable to a lengthy term-
of-years sentence" where the juvenile of
fender would otherwise face "the prospect
of geriatric release." Null, 836 N.W.2d at
71. See also Cassiano v. Comm 'r of Correc
tion, 317 Conn. 52, 72-80, 115 A3d 1031
(2015) (imposition of a fifty-year sentence
without the possibility of parole on a juvenile
offender was subject to the sentencing proce
dures set forth in Miller).

(Emphasis supplied.)

The Ronquillo Court declared his sentence a "Je facto life sentence."

Another case from Division I is State v. Keodara, 191 Wn. App.

305, 364 P.3d 777 (2015). The Keodara Court ruled that the sentence im

posed violated the constitutional mandate contained in Miller and sent the

case back for another sentencing hearing.

Additionally, State v. Houston-Sconiers, supra, provides further im

petus for resentencing. The Court recognized at 21-23 that:

... [Sjentencing courts must have complete
discretion to consider mitigating circum
stances associated with the youth of any ju
venile defendant, even in the adult criminal
justice system, regardless of whether the ju
venile is there following a decline hearing or
not. To the extent our state statutes have been

interpreted to bar such discretion with regard
to juveniles, they are overruled. Trial courts
must consider mitigating qualities of youth at
sentencing below the otherwise applicable
SRA range and/or sentence enhancements.

11



Miller is mainly concerned with what must
happen at sentencing because Miller's hold
ing rests on the insight that youth are gener
ally less culpable at the time of their crimes
and culpability is of primary relevance in sen
tencing. See Miller, 132 S. Ct. at 2464. But
the part of the Miller fix statute that is appli
cable to this case, RCW 9.94A730, prioritizes
public safety considerations and likelihood of
recidivism. It makes no allowance for consid

eration of any of the mitigating factors of
youth that Miller requires at the time of sen
tencing. The faet that a recently enacted stat
ute may offer the possibility of another rem
edy in the future, or on collateral review, does
not resolve whether petitioners' sentences are
unconstitutional and in need of correction

now, and it does not provide for the consid
eration of mitigating factors to which they are
entitled now, while their convictions are still
not yet final.

(Emphasis supplied.)

Mr. Gilbert asserts that his age at the time of the offenses, the Kent

factor analysis contained in the report submitted at the juvenile decline hear

ing, the juvenile court administrator's testimony. Dr. Roesch's report and

the record of rehabilitation presented through the support letters submitted

at the sentencing hearing (CP 73) contravene and override the senteneing

court's ruling that concurrent sentences were not appropriate.

As the Supreme Court noted in Miller v. Alabama, supra:

Deciding that a "juvenile offender forever
will be a danger to society" would require
"mak[ing] a judgment that [he] is incorrigi
ble" - but '"incorrigibility is inconsistent with
youth.'" 560 U.S., at (slip op., at 22)
(quoting Workman v. Commonwealth, 429
S.W.2d 374, 378 (Ky. App. 1968)). And for

12



the same reason, rehabilitation could not jus
tify the sentence. Life without parole "fore
swears altogether the rehabilitative ideal."
Graham, 560 U.S. at {slip op., at 23). It
reflects "an irrevocable judgment about [an
offender's] value and place in society" is at
odds with a child's capacity for change. Ibid.

CONCLUSION

Mr. Gilbert asserts that the comprehensive analysis contained in the

dissent opinion is the correct resolution of his case. Based upon that in-

depth nationwide consideration of the state-of-law Mr. Gilbert is entitled to

be resenteneed. Moreover, "(i)n resolving a question of statutory construc

tion, the spirit and intent of the law should prevail over the letter of the law."

In Re R., 97 Wn.2d 182,187, 641 P.2d 704 (1982).

The spirit and integrity of the law, as annunciated in Roper, Graham,

Miller, Montgomery, and Tatum, supra, requires a reevaluation of whether

or not a juvenile who has been convicted of serious violence offense should

have the opportunity to rejoin society and prove that he/she has become a

responsible human being who will be a productive member of society.

When it is established that a juvenile who committed a violent crime

is neither "incorrigible" nor "irreparably corrupted", and that the crime was

the result of immaturity and propitiousness associated with the lack of ma

ture brain development, then a de facto life sentence is inappropriate and

unconstitutional.

13



Mr. Gilbert carried his burden of proof at the resentencing hearing.

The trial court committed error in its decision-making by relying upon the

State's argument that its authority was limited to imposing the mandatory

25-year sentence under the Miller fix.

In essence, the State's argument ignored all of the evidence intro

duced by Mr. Gilbert that he is no longer a danger to society.

What Mr. Gilbert did as a 15-year-old is not the person he is now at

the age of 40.

Mr. Gilbert respectfully requests that the Court accept his petition

and that his case be remanded to the trial court for another resentencing

hearing.