FILED
SUPREME COURT
STATE OF WASHINGTON
8/22/2018 2:16 PM
BY SUSAN L. CARLSON
CLERK

SUPREME COURT NO. 95814-9 COURT OF APPEALS NO. 33794-4-III

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON

STATE OF WASHINGTON,

Respondent,

 \mathbf{V}_{\bullet}

JEREMIAH JAMES GILBERT,

Appellant.

ANSWER TO PETITION FOR REVIEW

DAVID R. QUESNEL Klickitat County Prosecuting Attorney

Klickitat County Prosecuting Attorney 206 S Columbus Ave, Rm. 106 Goldendale, Washington 99620 (509) 773-5838 FAX (509) 773-6696

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

D. ARGUMENT

opinion comports with the "spirit" of recent jurisprudence on juvenile sentencing, (2) whether the Court of Appeals' reliance on facets of the "Miller¹ fix" legislation and implementing regulations violate the Eighth Amendment and his right to equal protection under the federal and state constitutions, (3) whether the Court of Appeals improperly failed to consider an opinion identified by Gilbert in a Statement of Additional Authorities, and (4) whether imposition of consecutive sentences amounts to a de facto life sentence in violation of Miller and Montgomery v.

Alabama, 577 U.S. , 136 S.Ct. 718, 193 L.Ed.2d 599 (2016).

This Court should deny review of each of these claims because Gilbert's petition fails to conform to the requirements of RAP 13.4.

Further, Gilbert raises certain issues for the first time in this petition, making them unsuitable for review under RAP 13.3. Additionally, no evidence before the Court demonstrates that the resentencing court abused its discretion in imposing a sentence for Aggravated Murder consistent with statute.

¹ Miller v. Alabama, 567 U.S. 460, 132 S.Ct. 2455, 183 L. Ed. 2d 407 (2012).

1. THIS COURT SHOULD DENY REVIEW BECAUSE GILBERT FAILS TO COMPLY WITH RULES OF APPELLATE PROCEDURE.

This Court has set forth the requirements for obtaining review of a Court of Appeals decision in RAP 13.4. Subsection (b) of the rule identifies the considerations governing acceptance of review, specifying that review will be granted "only" if one or more of the following circumstances exist: (1) the decision conflicts with a decision of the Supreme Court, (2) the decision conflicts with a published decision of the Court of Appeals, (3) the decision involves a significant question of constitutional law, or (4) the petition involves an issue of substantial public interest that should be determined by the Supreme Court. RAP 13.4(b). In order for this Court to evaluate whether any of these conditions exist, the petition must include "A direct and concise statement of the reasons why review should be accepted under one or more of the tests established in subsection (b), with argument." RAP 13.4(c)(7).

Gilbert's petition does not identify which if any of the considerations in RAP 13.4(b) warrants review in his case. Indeed, he fails to cite the governing rule at all. And while Gilbert's petition includes argument on the merits of the claims he submits for review, he fails to address the only issue relevant to his petition: whether review is

appropriate under RAP 13.4. Because Gilbert has not shown why review should be granted, this Court should deny review of the petition in its entirety. *See State v. Korum*, 157 Wn.2d 614, 624-25, 141 P.3d 13 (2006) (declining to review issue because of petitioner's failure to comply with RAP 13.4).

2. GILBERT MAY NOT RAISE NEW ISSUES IN A PETITION FOR REVIEW.

Among other issues, Gilbert seeks review of whether "RCW 9.94A.740(1) and WAC 381-40-150 contravene[s] Mr. Gilbert's right to equal protection under the Fourteenth Amendment to the United States Constitution, [Wash.] Const. art. I, § 3, as well as the Eighth Amendment[.]" Petition at 1. But Gilbert has presented that issue to neither the trial court nor the Court of Appeals. Consequently, the Court of Appeals has issued no decision on the matter. This Court will not ordinarily consider an issue not raised or briefed in the Court of Appeals. *State v. Halstein*, 122 Wn.2d 109, 130, 857 P.2d 270 (1993); RAP 13.3(a) (allowing a party to seek review of a "decision" of the Court of Appeals). Further, besides identifying the issue on page 1 of his petition, Gilbert fails to explain the nature of the claim, let alone why review is appropriate under RAP 13.4(b). Accordingly, this Court should not accept review of the alleged Equal Protection violation.

Gilbert's attempt to obtain review of whether the Court of Appeals "side-step[ed] its duty to consider" an opinion he submitted in a statement of additional authorities suffers similar deficiencies. As presented, the issue is not whether the Court of Appeals properly construed or applied State v. Houston-Sconiers, 188 Wn.2d 1, 391 P.3d 409 (2017), but whether it has discretion to avoid considering cases presented in statements of additional authority. ² If Gilbert believed the Court of Appeals failed to consider his authority at all, he should have moved for reconsideration on that basis. He did not. There is no decision on the issue as presented, and therefore, nothing to review. Halstein, 122 Wn.2d at 130; RAP 13.3(a). Moreover, aside from his statement of issues presented for review, Gilbert's petition includes no argument about whether the Court of Appeals considered or properly applied *Houston-Sconiers*, or why review of the issue is warranted under RAP 13.4(b). This Court should not accept review of the question concerning the Court of Appeals' duty to consider supplemental authority.

3. GILBERT DOES NOT ADDRESS THE TRUE SUBSTANTIVE CLAIM AT ISSUE: DID THE TRIAL COURT ABUSE ITS DISCRETION?

² The Court of Appeals clearly did consider *Houston-Sconiers*. It is cited and discussed in the majority opinion. Slip. Op. at 8.

In his Petition for Review Gilbert ignores the true substantive issue presented by this case: Did the trial court abuse its discretion in denying an exceptional sentence of a concurrent sentence for two murders when statute dictates consecutive sentences? The Defendant had a hearing accordance with the "Miller Fix" and at that hearing it was clear that the court took into account all materials provided by the defendant. "I've read the risk assessment of the Defendant . . ." VRP 19. The court did not take this matter lightly. Rather, the court read the risk assessment, listened to the witness who spoke on the behalf of the Defendant, and listened to the Defendant, who spoke on his own behalf. But he also listened to the State, and to the surviving spouse of one of the men executed.

The fact is, the Defendant executed two innocent individuals in cold blood. He showed no mercy. Even as one man begged for his life, he fired a shot into his head. He executed Mr. Gresham, treating him like an animal by characterizing the murder as "putting him out of his misery."

The Defendant then mercilessly murdered Mr. Evans both to avoid detection and to obtain a vehicle to flee the scene. Had the Defendant been able to find Mr. Harris, the bow hunter who witnessed these insensible acts, he undoubtedly would have ruthlessly murdered Mr. Harris as well, as evidenced by the Defendant repeatedly firing shots at Mr. Harris as he

fled for his life. These gratuitously violent and cruel acts cannot be explained by youthful impulsivity or transient immaturity.

The Defendant argued that he deserves to be shown mercy, that a concurrent sentence would be just. At his re-sentencing, he asked the court to "read the letters of support and realize that reform is possible if I choose it and I have chosen such." VRP 18. The Defendant's opening brief states "Twenty-three (23) years of incarceration have changed him from a troubled juvenile into a responsible adult." Petition at 1. The inmate who spoke on his behalf and his briefing would lead this Court to believe that he was a model prisoner. The Defendant again leaves out the whole story. In fact, from 1994-2006, the Defendant had twenty-seven (27) serious infractions, including assaulting a Corrections Officer. He also had a minor infraction in 2009. CP 73-85. He has spent twelve years being a "model" inmate.

The Defendant argues now that the court did not take his mitigating factors such as his youth and the positive things he has done in the last ten years in prison. The record does not support this position.

The resentencing court made it very clear that all the evidence was examined. Upon handing down the sentence, the court said "I've read the risk assessment . . . I've given thought to this and poured over what the

facts are. . . even Mr. Gilbert would agree that this was a heinous crime, that he gratuitously and senselessly executed at least one person . . ." VRP 19. The court recognized the issue of whether a consecutive sentence was just, or whether "in the context of everything I know, justice requires me to agree with [Defense Counsel] and reduce that [sentence] by sentencing concurrently." VRP 19.

A standard range sentence can be challenged on the basis that the court refused to exercise discretion or relied on an improper basis for declining to consider the request. *State v. Garcia-Martinez*, 88 Wn. App. 322, 330, 944 P.2d 1104 (1997). In such circumstance, it is the court's refusal to exercise discretion that is appealable rather than the sentence itself. *Id.* "Conversely, a trial court that has considered the facts and has concluded that there is no basis for an exceptional sentence has exercised its discretion, and the Defendant may not appeal that ruling." *Id.*

In a *Miller* hearing, the offender has the burden of proving that an exceptional sentence below the standard range is justified. *State v. Ramos*, 187 Wn.2d 420, 445, 387 P.3d 650 (2017). "[N]ot every juvenile homicide offender is automatically entitled to an exceptional sentence below the standard range." *Id.* at 434. In *Ramos*, the defendant argued that his *Miller* hearing was insufficient. Ramos was convicted of the

brutal murders of a family of four and was sentenced to a de factor life sentence. *Id.* at 429. At resentencing after *Miller*, the court again imposed a de facto life sentence. *Id.* at 432. Noting that *Miller* did not dictate a particular procedure but left the states to develop their own procedures for implementing its holding, this Court held that the hearing in *Ramos* was constitutionally sufficient. *Id.* at 453.

Significantly, the *Ramos* Court noted that not every judge would have imposed the same sentence, but "we cannot reweigh the evidence on review." *Id.* at 453. "The court clearly received and considered *Ramos*' extensive mitigation evidence, was fully aware of its authority to impose an exceptional sentence below the standard range, and reasonably considered the issues identified in *Miller* when making its decision." *Id.* Ramos failed to show on appeal that the hearing violated "*Miller*'s minimal requirements." *Id.* The Court concluded that the 85-year sentence did not violate the Eighth Amendment. *Id.* at 458.

Likewise, Gilbert's resentencing met the substantive and procedural requirements of *Miller*. Substantively, the sentence imposed does not constitute a de facto life sentence and thus does not violate *Miller's* ban on imposing a life sentence without the possibility of parole

on all the but the worst homicide offenders. Gilbert will be eligible for release from his sentence by age 60.

Ultimately, the resentencing court reasonably determined that justice for the Defendant's multiple horrific crimes demanded a consecutive sentence which would result in the possible release of Defendant at age 60. The court was aware of its responsibilities and discretion, and exercised both.

E. <u>CONCLUSION</u>

The State respectfully asks that the petition for review be denied.

DATED this all day of August, 2018.

Respectfully submitted,

KLICKITAT COUNTY
PROSECUTING ATTORNEY

David Quesnel, WSBA #38579

Prosecuting Attorney Attorneys for Respondent

KLICKITAT COUNTY PROSECUTOR'S OFFICE

August 22, 2018 - 2:16 PM

Transmittal Information

Filed with Court: Supreme Court

Appellate Court Case Number: 95814-9

Appellate Court Case Title: State of Washington v. Jeremiah James Gilbert

Superior Court Case Number: 92-1-00108-1

The following documents have been uploaded:

• 958149_Answer_Reply_20180822141452SC345027_9262.pdf

This File Contains:

Answer/Reply - Answer to Petition for Review

The Original File Name was 2018-08-22-Answer to Petition for Review.pdf

A copy of the uploaded files will be sent to:

• davidq@klickitatcounty.org

• nodblspk@rcabletv.com

• paapeals@klickitatcounty.org

Comments:

Sender Name: Rebecca Sells - Email: rebeccas@klickitatcounty.org

Address:

205 S COLUMBUS AVE RM 106 GOLDENDALE, WA, 98620-9054

Phone: 509-773-5838

Note: The Filing Id is 20180822141452SC345027